

COOPER NUCLEAR STATION P.O. BOX 98, BROWNYILLE, NEBRASKA 68321 TELEPHONE 1302/925-3811 FAX (402)625-5205

TEOI

NLS960001 January 8, 1996

Director, Office of Enforcement U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Attention: Document Control Desk Washington, D.C. 20555

Gentlemen:

Subject: Reply to a Notice of Violation; NRC Inspection Report No. 50-298/95-15; Cooper Nuclear Station, NRC Docket 50-298, DPR-46

Reference: Letter from Mr. T. P. Gwynn (USNRC) to Mr. G. R. Horn (NPPD), dated December 8, 1995, NRC Inspection Report 50-298/95-15 and Notice of Violation.

This letter, including Attachment 1, constitutes Nebraska Public Power District's (the District) reply to the referenced Notice of Violation in accordance with 10 CFR 2.201. Inspection Report 50-298/95-15 documented the results of an NRC inspection conducted from October 23 through November 9, 1995, of the inservice inspection (ISI) program, erosion corrosion program, and followup of a previous maintenance inspection finding. The District admits to the violations and has completed all corrective actions that are necessary to return Cooper Nuclear Station (CNS) to full compliance with regard to 10CFR50.55a and 10CFR50 Appendix B Criterion V.

Should you have any questions concerning this matter, please contact my office.

Powerful Pride in Nebraska

Sincerely,

J. H. Múeller Site Manager

Attachment

cc: Regional Administrator USNRC - Region IV

> Senior Project Manager USNRC - NRR Project Directorate IV-1

19001 Senior Resident Inspector NRC - Cooper Nuclear Station

NPG Distribution

80468 960108 ADOCK 05000298 211090 118

Attachment 1 to NLS960001 Page 1 of 4

# REPLY TO DECEMBER 8, 1995, NOTICE OF VIOLATION COOPER NUCLEAR STATION NRC DOCKET NO. 50-298, LICENSE DPR-46

During NRC inspection activities conducted from October 23 through November 9, 1995, two violations of NRC requirements were identified. The particular violations and the District's reply are set forth below:

"Paragraph (g)(3)(I) of 10 CFR 50.55a, in part, states that components classified as ASME Code Class 1, 2, and 3 shall meet the pre-service examination requirements set forth in Section XI of the ASME Boiler and Pressure Vessel Code and Addenda applied to the particular component.

ASME Code, Section XI, 1980 Edition, Winter 1981 Addenda, Mandatory Appendix III, Article III-4000, Paragraph III-4330, states, "[c]ircumferential welds in Class 1 and 2 piping requiring volumetric examination shall be marked [in reference to weld centerline] once before or during preoperational examination to establish a reference point."

Contrary to the above, ASME Code replacement welds were not marked in reference to weld centerline prior to 1991 (e.g., Weld RHB-CF-60), and there were no formal or procedural controls established as of November 9, 1995, to assure that circumferential welds in ASME Code Class 1 and 2 piping requiring volumetric examination would be permanently marked as required."

### Admission or Denial to Violation

The District admits the violation.

#### Reasons for Violation

An investigation into the cause of this Violation revealed the following:

- 1) When the 1st ten-year interval was established at CNS for the implementation of the American Society of Mechanical Engineers (ASME) Section XI Code, "Rules for Inservice Inspection of Power Plant Components", the ASME Code (the Code) did not require weld marking. This requirement was subsequently adopted into the Code and should have been included in the 2nd ten-year interval program for ISI of replacement/repair welds.
- 2) Documentation exists that weld marking has been consistently performed since 1991 for the Non-Destructive Examination (NDE) of repair/replacement welds. Prior to this time, weld markings appear not to have been applied during the 2nd ten-year interval.

Attachment 1 to NLS960001 Page 2 of 4

3) Weld markings are an administrative Code requirement that are designed to provide a consistent reference point for future examinations. Instead, the recording of NDE indications has been controlled by administrative procedures which also included location references for indications. Accordingly, even though weld markings had not been made prior to 1991, there has not been any difficulty in identifying previous indications for subsequent examinations.

The reason for the violation stems from the lack of management controls over the interpretation and implementation of ASME Section XI Code requirements. Prior to the 1994 forced outage, reliance was placed on the contract NDE examiners to properly implement Code ISI requirements, while CNS personnel retained overall programmatic control. This programmatic control did not typically extend to developing procedural mechanisms for the tracking and verification of administrative Code requirements (such as the weld markings), nor in the documentation of their completion. For their part, it appears that the contract NDE examiners believed that the intent of the weld marking requirement was met by the method in which they recorded data.

### Corrective Steps Taken and the Results Achieved

The District has reviewed the documentation of the examinations performed on repair/replacement welds during the 2nd ten-year interval. It was found that those welds which had not been marked at one time during the 2nd ten-year interval had subsequently been either replaced and appropriately marked, or were reconciled as no longer requiring marking per Section XI Code requirements. Accordingly, no rework is necessary to affix weld markings on prior examinations.

After identification of this issue, instruction was provided to the CNS ISI and Repair/Replacement Engineers to ensure that the welds repaired or replaced during the recent refueling outage were appropriately marked. Maintenance records document that the markings have been made as required.

The District has assessed the concern that Code non-compliances of a more significant nature may exist stemming from the same root cause. During the 1994 forced outage, significant efforts were made to correct the programmatic deficiencies of the CNS ISI Program. These included: a) critically reviewing and redefining the Section XI boundaries, b) broadening in-house Code expertise by hiring an experienced ISI engineer from outside the District, c) reviewing the 2nd ten-year interval examination records (with any resulting reinspections performed during this last refueling outage), and d) revising the ISI program and plan to reflect the changes made. The improvement in ISI program quality was acknowledged in Inspection Report 95-15. At the time of this programmatic upgrade, weld marking was being performed. Accordingly, since the scope of these efforts was to assure the current adequacy of the program, a more intrusive inquiry into historical compliance and administrative controls governing weld marking was not pursued. Additionally, a comprehensive review of the forthcoming Code requirements has been performed to assure they are incorporated into the ISI Program Plan for the upcoming 3rd ten-year interval. For these reasons, the District has confidence in the acceptability of the CNS ISI Program despite this isolated issue.

Attachment 1 to NLS960001 Page 3 of 4

### Corrective Steps That Will Be Taken to Avoid Further Violations

Procedural controls are being put in place to coincide with the beginning of the 3rd ten-year interval to ensure that weld marking requirements continue to be met in the future.

### Date When Full Compliance Will Be Achieved

The District is in full compliance with the requirements of 10 CFR 50.55a.

"Criterion V of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50, states, in part, that "[a]ctivities affecting quality shall be prescribed by documented instructions, procedures, or drawings, of a type appropriate to the circumstances and shall be accomplished in accordance with these instructions, procedures or drawings."

Administrative Procedure 0.5, "Condition Reporting," Revision 3, Step 4.11.1, requires that any individual aware of an undesirable or questionable condition at the facility is responsible for initiating a condition report. Step 8.1.1 specifies that any individual may initiate a condition report.

Contrary to the above, upon discovery on October 23, 1995, of a loss of control of calibration blocks, used to perform examinations prior to acceptance and release by engineering, the licensee inservice inspection personnel failed to initiate a condition report for undesirable or questionable conditions."

### Admission or Denial to Violation

The District admits the violation.

#### Reasons for Violation

The District considers this violation to be supplemental to Violation 9511-01 in that it is an additional instance where inappropriate judgments were made by CNS personnel as to the threshold where a Condition Report (CR) should be written. Procedure 0.5 states, "Any individual aware of an undesirable or questionable condition at CNS is responsible for initiating a Condition Report." However, it is not the District's intent that the formal Corrective Action Program routinely supplement day-to-day verbal corrections made between management and the staff. In the case of this violation, the CNS ISI Engineer and his supervisor believed that effective corrective action had been taken to reestablish control over the NDE contractor and the calibration blocks, and to resolve the adverse consequences of that issue. These actions included: a) discussing the incident with the NDE contractor supervision, b) establishing stricter administrative controls over the future use of the calibration blocks that were potentially suspect because of this event, and c) invalidating the data that had been taken with the improper blocks and identifying the need to re-perform those examinations. It was believed that under these circumstances, a CR was not warranted particularly since the issue had been identified and action taken prior to review and acceptance of the examination data. This was an inappropriate judgment since examinations had been performed with the inaccurate calibration blocks.

Attachment 1 to NLS960001 Page 4 of 4

### Corrective Steps Taken and the Results Achieved

After discussion of this potential violation with the NRC inspector, a CR was written to document the inappropriate use of the calibration blocks. The CNS personnel involved were sensitized to the expectation that the CR process is to be used to document potential conditions adverse to quality. Additionally, this issue was described to CNS personnel in a posted newsletter on outage progress and activities.

## Corrective Steps That Will Be Taken to Avoid Further Violations

As discussed in the District reply to Violation 9511-01 (NLS950205), CNS management will continue to place attention on specific threshold issues should they occur.

### Date When Full Compliance Will Be Achieved

The District is in full compliance with the requirements of 10 CFR 50 Appendix B Criterion V with respect to adhering to the requirements of Procedure 0.5.

### LIST OF NRC COMMITMENTS

#### Correspondence No: NLS960001

. .

.....

The following table identifies those actions committed to by the District in this document. Any other actions discussed in the submittal represent intended or planned actions by the District. They are described to the NRC for the NRC's information and are not regulatory commitments. Please notify the Licensing Manager at Cooper Nuclear Station of any questions regarding this document or any associated regulatory commitments.

COMMITMENT	COMMITTED DATE OR OUTAGE
Procedural controls are being put in place to coincide with the beginning of the 3rd ten-year interval to ensure that weld marking requirements continue to be met in the future.	3/1/96

PROCEDURE NUMBER 0.42